
Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada 89503 · (775) 682-5800 · FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu

Board Book Page  1

Governing Board Meeting 
Wednesday, September 28, 2022

Board Book Page 1



Board Book Page 2

The Davidson Academy 
1164 N. Virginia Street, Second Floor, Reno, Nevada  89503 • (775) 682-5800 • FAX (775) 682-5801 

www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

The regular meeting of the Governing Board of the Davidson Academy will be held 
starting at 2 p.m. on Wednesday, September 28, 2022. 

This public meeting will be held via videoconference and there will be no physical 
location for the meeting. Members of the public wishing to hear and observe the 
meeting may do so using the following link: https://davidsonacademy-unr-
edu.zoom.us/j/93373615524 

Public comment for this meeting will be received via email, videoconference 
participation, and telephone. Those wishing to provide public comment via email may 
email their public comments to boardcomments@davidsonacademy.unr.edu. All public 
comments received via email before and during the meeting will be forwarded to the 
Governing Board of the Davidson Academy for their consideration and will be included 
in the public record as minutes but will not be read aloud during the meeting. Those 
wishing to provide live public comment via videoconference may do so using the 
following link: https://davidsonacademy-unr-edu.zoom.us/j/93373615524. Those wishing 
to provide live public comment via telephone may dial 1 + 346 248 7799 and use 
participant code 933 7361 5524. 

AGENDA 
2 p.m. 

A. ROLL CALL*

B. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS*

C. PUBLIC COMMENTS*

The public may comment on any subject that is not on the agenda that is
pertinent to the Davidson Academy. Each speaker will be limited to three
minutes. Public comment relating to an agenda item will be taken during
discussion of that item. Comment will be limited to three minutes but speaking
time may be reduced at the discretion of the chair of the meeting, if there are a
large number of speakers on a given subject. No comments will be restricted
based upon viewpoint.

Rev 1

zsimms
Highlight



Board Book Page 3

Page 2 – Davidson Academy Governing Board Agenda 

 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (for possible action) 

 
The public is notified that the Governing Board may take items on the agenda out 
of order; combine two or more agenda items for consideration; remove an item 
from the agenda; or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda.   

 
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  Meeting of May 23, 2022 (for possible action) 

 
F. REPORTS*   

 
1. ACADEMY DIRECTOR* 

a. General Program Updates 
 

2. MEDIA AND OUTREACH*  
 

G.  GENERAL BUSINESS 
 
 1.  VICE PRESIDENT AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 

     a.  Presentation of independent auditor’s report for the fiscal year ended  
June 30, 2022 (for possible action)  

 
H. PUBLIC COMMENTS*  

 
The public may comment on any subject that is not on the agenda that is 
pertinent to the Davidson Academy. Each speaker will be limited to three 
minutes. Public comment relating to an agenda item will be taken during 
discussion of that item. Comment will be limited to three minutes but speaking 
time may be reduced at the discretion of the chair of the meeting, if there are a 
large number of speakers on a given subject.  No comments will be restricted 
based upon viewpoint. 

 
I. ADJOURNMENT (for possible action) 

 
Meeting Dates for 2022 
 

• Monday, November 14, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board Book Page 4

Page 2 – Davidson Academy Governing Board Agenda 

             
CERTIFICATE OF POSTING OF THIS AGENDA 

 
I hereby certify that In accordance with NRS 241.020, on or before Friday, September 23, 2022 at 9:00 a.m., a copy of this 
agenda was delivered to the post office used by the Davidson Academy addressed to each person who has requested to 
receive copies of Davidson Academy Governing Board meeting agendas; a copy of this agenda was emailed to each person 
who agreed to receive copies of Davidson Academy Governing Board meeting agendas by electronic mail; and a copy has 
been posted online at Notice.NV.gov and at the Academy’s website (http://www.DavidsonAcademy.UNR.edu/). A physical copy 
was posted at the Davidson Academy, Reno NV, per NRS 241.020.  

 
/s/  Aimee Fredericks 
Governing Board Clerk  
Email:  afredericks@davidsonacademy.unr.edu 
Phone: 775-682-5800 

 
             
 
Governing Board: Bob Davidson, Roger Davidson, Hon. Brian Krolicki, Mark Herron, Lauralyn Lovell McCarthy 

Sandoval, Richard Trachok, and Annette Whittemore; Ex-Officio: Dr. Susan Enfield, Jhone Ebert, 
and Hon. Brian Sandoval 

Note:  The Governing Board may take items on the agenda out of order; combine two or more agenda items for consideration; remove 
an item from the agenda; or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda. 
 
Those items followed by an asterisk (*) are items on the agenda upon which the Governing Board will take no action.  
 
Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the meeting are requested to call 
Colleen Harsin at 775-682-5800 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Copies of the packets containing support material for this agenda are available at no charge on the Davidson Academy website at 
http://DavidsonAcademy.UNR/edu. Copies may also be obtained by sending a request via email to 
charsin@davidsonacademy.unr.edu or by contacting Aimee Fredericks by mail at Davidson Academy, 9665 Gateway Drive, Ste. B, 
Reno, NV 89521, or by telephone at 775-682-5800. 
 
 
 
Meeting agendas and minutes are available on the Academy’s website (http://www.DavidsonAcademy.UNR.edu/). 
 
 
 
 



Board Book Page 5

 

1 
 

Minutes of the Meeting 

The Davidson Academy Governing Board 

May 23, 2022 
 
Call to Order 
The regular meeting of the Governing Board of the Davidson Academy was called to order 
at 2:01 p.m. This public meeting was held via Zoom videoconference with no physical 
meeting location. 
 
A.  Roll Call   
Roll call was completed by the Chair of the Meeting, Mark Herron. Bob Davidson, Roger 
Davidson, Richard Trachock, Brian Krolicki and Lauralyn McCarthy-Sandoval were 
present. Also present were Academy Director, Colleen Harsin; Interim Director of Online 
Learning, Ashley Zahn; Legal Counsel, Ann Alexander; Controller, Karin Dixson; and 
Clerk of the Board, Aimee Fredericks. Kristen McNeill, Annette Whittemore, Jhone Ebert 
and Brian Sandoval were not present. Following completion of roll call, a quorum was 
confirmed without presence of Brian Krolicki, and he exited the meeting due to another 
engagement.   
 
B.  Welcome and Introduction   
Mark Herron welcomed board members and members of the public in attendance.   
 
C.  Public Comment  
Mr. Herron provided instructions concerning public comment as stated under item C. of 
the meeting agenda.  
 
Mark Herron stated that this meeting would be held without a physical location, but in 
compliance with Nevada legislation, was available for visual participation, and audio call-
in for public comments. He referenced the public comment details provided in the agenda 
and confirmed that public comments, if made, would be received by email or by telephone. 
No comments were received.  
 
D.  Approval of Agenda 
Mr. Herron advised that following posting of the agenda, it was determined that 
presentation and consideration of item G.1., concerning possible amending of the 2021- 
2022 budget, was not necessary and requested consideration that this item be removed. 
Richard Trachock confirmed that the meeting was following the agenda as posted. Mr. 
Herron confirmed that was the case and requested a motion for approval of the agenda 
with the proposed change. Motion was made and seconded for approval of the meeting 
agenda. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 



Board Book Page 6

 

2 
 

E.  Approval of Minutes 
Mark Herron requested approval of the minutes for the meeting of February 15, 2022, 
under Tab 1 of the board book. Motion was made and seconded for approval of the 
minutes as submitted. There was no discussion and the motion carried unanimously. 
 
F. Reports 
1. Academy Director   
a. General Program Updates 
Colleen Harsin began her report by referring Board Members to Tab 2 of their board books 
for presentation of the COVID-19 Mitigation Plan submitted to the Nevada State 
Department of Education. She confirmed that Davidson Academy staff members 
continued to monitor symptoms and contact tracing of staff and students. There were 
three students and staff members that were reportedly positive for COVID-19 toward the 
end of the school year.  
 
Under Tab 3 Ms. Harsin confirmed she had submitted to the Nevada State Department 
of Education, the Academy’s application for Alternative School Calendar for the 2022-
2023 school year. The calendar includes 154 instructional days, which is consistent with 
the University of Nevada, Reno calendar. The Academy takes one extra day in advance 
of the Thanksgiving Holiday. The calendar was approved. 
 
Other Academy updates included the holding of a formal Spring dance that was 
successful and well attended, and the yearbook is complete. Graduation was held on 
Saturday, May 7, 2022. There were approximately 200 family members and friends in 
attendance and 60 in attendance via Zoom. Lauralyn McCarthy Sandoval complimented 
that the ceremony was special and student accomplishments were well recognized. 
 
Ms. Harsin reported that parent surveys were completed and included comments on what 
worked best in terms of in-person learning. Parents requested further in-person learning 
opportunities and extracurricular activities for Academy students.  
 
Four Davidson Academy students participating in the International Public Policy Forum 
did well and made it to the top eight teams at the national level. Additionally, the 
Academy’s middle school team participating in Science Bowl finished in the top eight 
teams and will be traveling to Washington, D.C.  
 
Ms. Harsin confirmed that the admissions review process for the 2022-2023 school year 
was concluding. The were many applications that came in at the deadline. The estimate 
of 155 students for purpose of discussion of the budget may be on the lower end of 
estimated total enrollment.  
 
Under Tab 5 of the board books, Ms. Harsin referred Board Members to a Summary of 
College Admissions for Davidson Academy 2022 graduates. Eighteen students 



Board Book Page 7

 

3 
 

graduated from the Reno campus and six from the online campus. Davidson Academy 
Reno campus graduate, Juliana Schneider, who will be attending MIT, is a U.S. 
Presidential Scholar for the State of Nevada.  
 
2. Interim Director of Online Learning 
a. General Program Updates 
Mark Herron introduced Interim Director of Online Learning, Ashley Zahn, who assumed 
this role following the departure of Dr. Stacy Hawthorne. Ms. Zahn is not new to the 
Davidson Academy and has been primarily responsible for curriculum and applicant 
assessment services for the last several years.  Mr. Herron also confirmed that as of July 
1, 2022, Davidson Academy Online will no longer be part of the Davidson Academy of 
Nevada, the Nevada public school. 
 
Ms. Zahn referred Board Members to Tab 6 of their board books for an applications 
update. She confirmed 33 new students were accepted to Davidson Academy Online for 
the 2022-2023 school year, with 27 enrolling. Also under Tab 6, Ms. Zahn provided 
information about DAO Oracle which was formed in the summer of 2021 in response to 
a need for social and emotional support of online students and intended to mitigate effects 
from the COVID-19 pandemic. This program also provides academic support.  
 
Davidson Academy Online recently held their Senior Night in celebration of six graduates 
for the 2022 school year.  
 
3. Media and Outreach 
Colleen Harsin provided a report of media and outreach activities on behalf of the 
Davidson Academy under Tab 7 of the board books. She confirmed that the Academy 
continues to do well with notable media mentions and web rankings and website metrics.  
 
Ms. Harsin confirmed that Dr. Kristen McNeill is retiring. She thanked Dr. McNeill for her 
service as part of the Davidson Academy Governing Board since 2019.  
 
G.  General Business 
 
1. Review, discuss, and possibly approve Amended budget for Fiscal Year 2021-2022.  
Mark Herron confirmed that after the posting of the agenda for this meeting it was 
determined that the budget variances overall did not warrant amending the budget, nor 
was there enough certainty on some cost items related to the separation of the Reno and 
online programs, so this agenda item was removed. 
 
He further commented that it is anticipated that there will be about $171,000 of savings 
in the current year, net of an increase in 401K match expense, but not accounting for 
other wage and benefit expenses. Related to the separation of the Reno and online 
programs, there may be some potentially significant savings in the Reno budget for wages 



Board Book Page 8

 

4 
 

and benefits for the current year. After much consideration it has been decided to use 
May 20 as the final date for including online staff on Reno payroll. 
 
Accrued vacation time will be calculated as of May 20 for all online staff moving to the 
independent school. Reno will pay Davidson Academy Online the appropriate vacation 
balance. Payroll for the independent school will be paid by Davidson Academy Online for 
pay periods occurring after May 20. These net amounts have not yet been determined 
and allocated to the various account codes the state requires. 
 
Finally on this topic, invoices for services benefiting online students for the 2021-22 
budget will continue to be paid on the Reno budget. Much effort has been made to 
establish new vendor accounts and a completely separate accounting system for 
Davidson Academy Online to ensure a smooth transition. 
 
2. Review, discuss, and possibly approve engagement of auditors Holthouse Carlin & 
Van Trigt to conduct required annual audit of financials by independent third party.  
Mark Herron confirmed recommendation to the Board that Holthouse, Carlin & Van Trigt 
(HCVT) be retained to perform the audit for the 2021-22 fiscal year and referred the Board 
to Tab 8, for a copy of the engagement letter. 
 
Mr. Herron advised there have been some wording changes and rearrangement of the 
engagement letter. The section “Engagement Fees and Billing,” on page 5 is new 
language and addresses the assumptions upon which the fee quote is based. It also 
includes payment installment on a progress basis, something that is also new. 
 
For the 5th year the audit will be overseen by partner Morris Zlotowitz. Kimberly Hastings 
will be the supervising senior manager for the audit work. Kevin Wilde joined the 
engagement last year as audit manager and it is expected he will continue this year. 
There will also be a concurring partner, but that person is usually not assigned until the 
audit is close to completion. 
 
Mr. Herron referred Board Members to the SAS 134 letter from the auditors included in 
their board books. This is something new this year. It is a new requirement and 
communicates certain information to those charged with governance at the start of the 
audit cycle rather than later. Mr. Herron advised the key language, in his view, is the 
“Significant Risks” section that starts on page 2. This identifies the key risks within the 
financial statement and how the auditors will design audit procedures in response to these 
risks. 
 
The audit fee is $33,000, an increase of over $28,500 from last year (15.8%). This is the 
first substantial fee increase seen for some time. Mr. Herron inquired about the fee 
increase and was told the fee has not really kept up with the complexity that the online 
program introduced. In addition, with the online program separating from the Reno public 
school at the end of this fiscal year, the audit will be more complex. It was advised that a 
fee reduction could be expected next year with the separation of the online program. 
 



Board Book Page 9

 

5 
 

HCVT knows the Academy, the structure of its financial statements and internal controls, 
and the requirements of the Department of Education and can meet the Academy’s 
somewhat restrictive timeline for completing, reviewing and accepting the audit report by 
this board and submitting it to the state on time. The fee increase is not welcome, but we 
do acknowledge the complexity introduced by the online program. Mr. Herron offered 
anecdotally that it’s his understanding that substantial fee increases are common now, if 
organizations can even find auditors to engage. 
 
Mr. Herron recommend engaging HCVT and ask for a motion to approve their 
engagement. Motion was made and seconded for approval. There was no further 
discussion and the motion carried unanimously.  
 
3. Review, discuss, and possibly approve budget for Fiscal Year 2022-2023, presented 
as a tentative budget at public budget hearing on May 9, 2022.  
Mark Herron referred Board Members to Tab 9 of the board books for consideration of the 
proposed budget for the 2022-2023 fiscal year. He confirmed a public hearing on the tentative 
budget was held on Monday, May 9, 2022. This was a “virtual” hearing held via Zoom. The 
hearing was properly noticed and published in the Reno Gazette-Journal on April 29, 2022. 
Proof of posting, publication and minutes were included in the board books. Members of the 
public could make comments via email, telephone or Zoom participation. No comments were 
received. 
 
Mr. Herron reported that the online program moving to an independent school next academic 
year and this budget is for the Reno campus only. The proposed budget is based on 155 
students, 10 more students than in the current year. 
 
Total revenue is budgeted at $3.97 million, with $1.17 million coming from the state of 
Nevada; and $2.64 million coming as contributions from Bob Davidson. State support is down 
$110,350 over the prior year, as a result of a new funding mechanism put in place after the 
2021 legislative session. 
 
Turning to expenses, total expenses are budgeted at $4.175 million, up $377,000 over the 
prior year. After non-cash items, principally prepaid rent which reflects the amortization of the 
Jot Travis building leasehold improvements, the net fund balance is $38,290 which is $11,565 
higher than the prior year’s budget. 
 
Wages and benefits account for the vast majority of the expenditures. The budget assumes 
a 5.5% average wage increase and a 6% increase in employee health benefits expense 
although that does not come up for negotiations for another few months. There have been 
flat or no increases in health benefit costs over the last few years but with inflation and tight 
insurance markets in general it is expected that may change this cycle. 
 
At the beginning of this calendar year the Davidson Group, which employs the Academy staff, 
implemented a safe-harbor 401K plan with matching contributions of up to 4% of base 
compensation. This is reflected in the budget and accounted about $51,600 of additional 
payroll expense in the current fiscal year. 
 



Board Book Page 10

 

6 
 

Included in the budget are costs for a new math/physics instructor and the budget also reflects 
increased Section 504 and IEP student support costs. Student competition and related travel 
expenses are in the budget assuming post-pandemic circumstances, as are staff professional 
development conferences and travel. 
 
About $70,000 in IT costs are also included, related to student and staff computers. This 
purchase had been put on hold last year and it has been 2 years since purchasing new 
laptops for the Academy. 
 
Finally, and again in connection with the separation of the online program, Mr. Herron expects 
to structure a contracted flat fee for support services received by the Reno campus from the 
Davidson Group for administrative services such as accounting, HR, and IT provided by 
senior staff. Currently the budget reflects these expenses captured in payroll but will shift to 
professional services expense as this is formalized and reviewed with the auditors. 
  
Mr. Herron requested a motion for approval of the tentative budget as presented, and second, 
and invited discussion or questions from the Board. Motion was made and seconded. 
Lauralyn McCarthy Sandoval commented concerns about inflation. Mr. Herron confirmed that 
he was monitoring this. There was no further discussion and the motion carried unanimously.  
 
H.  Public Comment  
Mark Herron reiterated instructions concerning public comment as stated under item C. 
of the meeting agenda. No comments were received.  
 
 
I.  Adjournment   
There being no further business to come before the board in public meeting, Mr. Herron 
asked for a motion to adjourn. Motion was made, seconded and carried unanimously. The 
meeting adjourned at 2:59 p.m. 
 
 
______________________________________ 

Respectfully submitted by Aimee Fredericks, Clerk of the Board 

 



Board Book Page 11



Board Book Page 12



Board Book Page 13



Board Book Page 14



Board Book Page 15



Board Book Page 16



Board Book Page 17



Board Book Page 18



Board Book Page 19



Board Book Page 20



Board Book Page 21



Board Book Page 22



Board Book Page 23



Board Book Page 24



Board Book Page 25



Board Book Page 26



Board Book Page 27



Board Book Page 28

Director
 Colleen Harsin

Counseling Team
Alexandra Ellison, Jesse Kachurak, Laurie
Parish

collegeadvising@davidsonacademy.unr.edu
www.DavidsonAcademy.unr.edu

Davidson Academy
P.O. Box 9119
Reno, NV 89507
775-682-5800

CEEB Code: 290207

Accreditation
Special Purpose School by the Northwest
Accreditation Commission (NWAC), a
division of Cognia.

COVID-19 Response
2021-2022 School Year
The Davidson Academy resumed full in-
person learning where state and local
mandates, including masks and social
distancing, are were in place.

2020-2021 School Year
The Academy classes were available via our
remote learning model for the entire 2020-
2021 school year. The Majority of the
students choose to access this option for the
duration of the year from home. However,
students were welcomed to the school
building by signing up to engage in remote
learning from school when in-person
classes were an option.
 Similar to the spring 2020, the Academy
recognized individual students experienced
various effects of the pandemic. As a result,
students and their families were offered
options to consider in the context of their
unique situation. Students were given the
choice to continue with regular letter
grades, or switch from letter to a pass/fail
grade for select high school classes. A pass
is 70% or higher.

Spring 2020
At the onset of the pandemic, the Davidson
Academy began delivering all courses
remotely live via Zoom. While student
attendance, performance, and expectations
remained the same through remote
learning, the Davidson Academy recognized
individual students experienced various
effects of the pandemic. As a result,
students and their families were offered
options to consider in the context of their
unique situation. Students were given the
choice to continue with regular letter
grades, or utilize one of these options.
 
Switch from letter to a pass/fail grades for
all high school classes. A pass is 70% or
higher.
z Switch from taking a course for credit to
audit status with an “AU” recorded on their
transcript.
z Withdraw from one or more courses
without a “W” on their transcript.
Students were expected to remain in at least
five graded courses, regardless of the option
they chose.

 

SCHOOL PROFILE | 2022 – 2023

Switch from letter to a pass/fail grades
for all high school classes. A pass is 70%
or higher.
Switch from taking a course for credit to
audit status with an “AU” recorded on
their transcript.
Withdraw from one or more courses
without a “W” on their transcript.

INTRODUCTION

BY THE NUMBERS

CURRICULUM

EXTRACURRICULAR AND CLUB ACTIVITIES

Established in 2006, the Davidson Academy offers profoundly gifted students, who are prepared to
progress through a middle and/or high curriculum in a rigorous academic setting.

The Academy is designated by Nevada legislation as a “university school for profoundly gifted pupils”
(NRS Chapter 392A). Driven by our mission to provide profoundly gifted young people an advanced
educational opportunity matched to their abilities, strengths, and interests, students are grouped by
ability, not by age or grade. All students, at both campuses, must meet the following eligibility criteria: 

A score of 99.9% or above on nationally normed intelligence tests and/or nationally normed
tests.
Demonstration of superior academic achievement and intellectual potential.
Motivation, social and emotional maturity, and overall readiness for an accelerated educational
environment.

In the 2017-2018 school year, Davidson Academy launched its online campus available to students
anywhere in the US and Canada. As of the 2022-2023 school year, Davidson Academy Online is now an
Independent School with CEEB code 292246. Davidson Academy will continue to be a public school.

Each Academy student develops a Prospective Learning Plan (PLP) to serve as a roadmap for academic and
personal goals. These plans guide students through a rigorous core curriculum and help them make
elective decisions based on their interests and abilities. PLPs are consistent with the Academy’s
philosophy to treat students as individuals invested in their own learning. High school students engage in
a blend of advanced high school, undergraduate, and graduate level courses. We emphasize breadth and
depth rather than teaching to any particular standardized test or curriculum. Our coursework stresses
high-level thinking skills, critical and creative engagement, collaborative discussion with fellow
classmates, as well as opportunities for experiential learning. Our classes are small and designed so
students must be active in their learning. 
Academy students must take at least five graded courses each semester. During senior year, students are
required to take four graded courses each semester. Core subject classes take place Monday-Thursday, and
most electives take place on Fridays.

Due to the rigor of the curriculum, we encourage our students to take part in a modest, but
meaningful amount of extracurricular activities within and outside the school community. 

sampling of
extra-

curricular
activities

DECA 
Science Olympiad
Club and high school
athletics
Graduate level research 

Math Competitions
Science Bowl
First Lego League
Robotics
Scholastic Arts & Writing

Music Ensembles 
Theater and Dance 
Speech and Debate 
Martial Arts

Responsibility ▪ Integrity ▪ Balance ▪ Leadership ▪ Pursuit of Knowledge ▪ Respect

27
Student Led

Clubs

10%
Eligible for 
 Financial

Aid

72%
Students of 

 Color

20
Zip

Codes

17
Seniors
Class of

2022

10:1
Student to

Teacher
Ratio

11
National Merit 
Semifinalists

163
Students
Enrolled



Board Book Page 29

Grading Scale
GPAs are calculated on a traditional 4.0
scale for all courses. 
Davidson Academy does not rank students.

       Grade                   Percent        
                A                                    93 – 100
                A–                                 90 – 92
                B+                                  87 – 89
                B                                     83 – 86
                B–                                 80 – 82
                C+                                  77 – 79
                C                                     73 – 76
                C–                                  70 – 72
                D+                                  67 – 69
                D                                     63 – 66
                D–                                 60 – 62
                F                                     00 – 59

Testing
The Nevada State Board of Education chose
the ACT as Nevada’s CCR assessment.
Nevada juniors took the ACT +Writing in the
spring of 20212022. Since fall 2020, College
Board and ACT testing centers in the Reno
area have remained open with limited
capacitates through spring 2022? Fall 2023?
and occasional last-minute cancellations.

Advanced Placement
Davidson Academy does not offer Advanced
Placement (AP) courses, but many students
choose to take the tests. Below is a summary
of testing in 20212022:
z76 62 students
z140 113 exams
z 96% of tests were 3 or above
100% of Total AP Students with 3 + 

Notable Achievements in 2021
Each year our students earn national and
international distinction, including: 2 U.S.
Presidential Scholars; 24 National Merit
Finalist; 1 Coca Cola Scholar; 1 Carson
Scholar; 1 MATHCOUNTS National
Champion; 1 Regeneron Science Talent
Search Top 300 Scholar; 1 Congressional
App Challenge winner; 1 Prudential Spirit of
Community Distinguished Finalist; 1st place
National Radon Poster winner; numerous
AIME/AMC participants with top honors; 1
Team of Nevada State Scholastic Chess
Champions; 1 National Cyber Scholar; FTC
Nevada State Champions; 1 NCWIT
Aspirations in Computing winner; 9
students competed in DECA ICDC with
numerous top 10 places; Middle School
Nevada State Science Bowl Champions –
Top 16 in the Nation; numerous Scholastic
Arts Awards recipients; top places in the
following national tests: USESO, USNCO,
USABO, NACLO; National Biology Bowl
Champions; ACSL International bronze
medal recipient; 1 National History Day
Outstanding Affiliate; Sweet 16 IPPF Team

School Recognitions
z Named one of the "15 Best Online High                  
Schools" in the nation by College         
 Transitions
z Davidson Academy was named to the
"Public Elites List" by the Washington
Post's Jay Mathews
z Ranked as one of Newsweek's Top STEM
High Schools for 2020
z Online Campus - 4x winner of the
Blackboard Catalyst Award
z Reno Campus - ranked No.1 as the "Best
Public High School" in Nevada by
Niche.com’s 20220 Best Schools in America
Rankings and Grades
z Ranked #63 in "2021 Best Public High
Schools" listing by US News and World
Report

 

The Davidson Academy Diploma is considered an advanced high school diploma in the state of Nevada.
Diplomas are awarded based on the following requirements: 
                    Cumulative unweighted GPA of 3.0
                    28 total credits required – 23 required, 5 electives

sampling of
current

school year
elective

offerings

The Actor Factor
Animation
Art
Astronomy
Creative Writing
Culinary Studies

Design of Everyday Things
Horror Fiction
Introduction to Calligraphy
Improv
Kung Fu
Music Theory

Mythology 
Philosophy
Quantum Physics
Programming with Java
Python
Yearbook

SCHOOL PROFILE | 2022 – 2023

Named to the "Public Elites List" by
the Washington Post's Jay Mathews
College Transitions
Ranked #1 as the "Best Public High
School" in Nevada and “Best Public
High School” in America by
Niche.com’s 2022 Best Schools in
America Rankings and Grades
Ranked #6 in "2022 Best Public High
Schools" and #1 in STEM High
Schools listing by US News and World 

62 students
113 exams
96% of tests were 3 or above

GRADUATION REQUIREMENTS AND COURSE OFFERINGS

DUAL ENROLLMENT

COLLEGE MATRICULATION: CLASSES 2018-2022
137 GRADUATES, 66 INSTITUTIONS

Electives
The Davidson Academy offers various elective courses which change yearly based on student interest.
Students may design and teach their own elective courses as approved by the administration.

sampling of
current dual
enrollment
courses for

academy
students

MATH486 Game Theory 
CS302 Data Structures 
PSY101 General Psychology
Biology453 Immunology
PAIT 111 First Year Paiute
 FREN491 20th Century French Literature

NS405 Perception 
ENG413A Sociolinguistics
ECON440 Intro to Mathematical Economics
ECON359 Economic Development 
PSC304 The Legislative Process 
ENT200 Fundamentals of Entrepreneurship

Students at the Davidson Academy may earn credit toward high school graduation by successfully
completing coursework at the University of Nevada, Reno, or another approved college or university.
Students dual enrolled at any point from Spring 2020-Spring 2021 at UNR had the option to change their
final grade to S/U (Satisfactory/Unsatisfactory).

Responsibility ▪ Integrity ▪ Balance ▪ Leadership ▪ Pursuit of Knowledge ▪ Respect

*more than 1 student | **more than 5 students

Agnes Scott: ASU*; Babson; Boston
U.*; BYU; Brown*; Caltech*; Carnegie
Mellon**; Champlain; Colorado
School of Mines; Columbia U.*;
Cornell; Dartmouth; DePaul; Duke
Kunshan; Emory; Fordham; GW;
Georgia Tech*; Grinnell; Harvard*;
Harvey Mudd*; Lewis & Clark*;
Macalester; MIT**; Neumont College
of Comp Sci; NAU; Northwestern;
Oberlin; Olin College of Engineering*; 

Oxford College at Emory*;
Pepperdine; Pitt; Pitzer; Pomona;
Princeton*; Purdue*; Rice*; Ringling
College of Art and Design;
 Rose-Hulman Institute of Tech;
Sarah Lawrence; Santa Clara U.;
Sarah Lawrence; Soka University of
America; SMU; Stanford**;
Swarthmore; Temple; Trinity College
Dublin; College of Wooster; U. of
Alabama; UBC*; UC Berkeley**; UC
Davis*; UCLA; UCSD; UCSB*; 

University of Chicago**; U of
Colorado, Boulder; U of Edinburgh*; U
of Hawaii, Manoa; U of Idaho*;
UIUC*; U of Maryland, College Park,
UNLV; U of Nevada, Reno** BSMD*;
U of Oklahoma*; U of Pittsburgh; U of
Rochester*; USC; U of Tennessee,
Knoxville; UT Dallas**; U of
Washington*; Ultrecht; Vanderbilt;
Washington State; WashU*; Western
Washington; Yale*

World
Language
3 Credits: 

Chinese I
Chinese II
Chinese III/IV
Chinese V/VI

Spanish I
Spanish II
Spanish III

Spanish V
Japanese 1A

History
3 Credits: 
 1 World, 

 1 US,
0.5 Gov, 

0.5 Economics

Patterns in Modern History
History of the United States
Principles of American Government

Asian Studies
Understanding the Post 9/11 World

Science
4 Credits

Physical Science
Biology
Advanced Biology

Chemistry
Advanced Chemistry

Physics 
Advanced Physics
Advanced Geosystems

Math
4 Credits

Geometry
Algebra II
Algebra II/Pre-Calculus
Statistics

Pre-Calculus 
Calculus I 
Calculus I/II
Calculus II 

Calculus III Year
Calculus III Semester

English
4 Credits

Composition & Analysis
Rhetoric & Literary Analysis

Studies in American Literature
British Literature
Advanced Rehtoric

Science Writing & Communications
Critical Theory



Board Book Page 30

Page 1 of 3 
 

                                                                                                               
Media and Outreach Updates 

September 28, 2022 
_____________________________________________________________________________________   
 
 
Media Updates/ Notable Website Mentions 
 
 
• PBS Reno Welcomes 2022 Bank of America Student Leaders 

August 1, 2022 – PBS Reno (DA student Darsh Patel was welcomed by PBS Reno into Bank of 
America’s Student Leaders Program this past summer, providing valuable work experience in a 
professional environment during an eight-week internship. Darsh founded the Soul Shoe Project, 
which provides winter gear to people experiencing homelessness to eradicate frostbite-induced 
amputations) 
https://www.pbsreno.org/about/pressroom/release-2022-boa-am-student-leaders/  
 

• Making an Impact: AIAA Announces First Recipients of AIAA Lockheed Martin Marillyn Hewson 
Scholarship 
July/August 2022 – Aerospace America (DA graduate Julia Schneider named a recipient of the new 
scholarship, which encourages young women to study and pursue a career in aerospace) 
https://aerospaceamerica.aiaa.org/bulletin/july-august-2022-aiaa-bulletin/#bulletin-item-1  
 

• Davidson Academy senior represents Nevada at Girls Nation in DC 
July 24, 2022 – KOLO/ABC (DA student Samantha Glover named a Nevada senator at the 75th 
American Legion Auxiliary Girls Nation in Washington, D.C.; one of two girls from Nevada and one of 
100 girls nationwide to attend) 
https://www.kolotv.com/2022/07/24/davidson-academy-senior-represents-nevada-girls-nation-dc/ 

 
• Davidson Academy student earns prestigious honor 

June 23, 2022 – KOLO/ABC (DA graduate Julia Schneider selected as a 2022 Presidential Scholar)   
https://www.kolotv.com/2022/06/23/davidson-academy-student-earns-prestigious-honor/ 

 
• Davidson Academy Middle School Team Shines at National Science Bowl 

July 18, 2022 – National Science Bowl (DA science bowl team recognized for performance at National 
Science Bowl)   
https://www.davidsonacademy.unr.edu/news/davidson-academy-middle-school-team-shines-at-
national-science-bowl/  

 
• 10 Best High School in USA by National Ranking 2022 

June 17, 2022 – 10 Best High School in USA by National Ranking 2022 (Includes the Davidson 
Academy) 
https://mbawali.com/10-best-high-school-in-usa-by-national-ranking-2022/  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

   



Board Book Page 31

Page 2 of 3 
 

Davidson Academy Website Metrics 
(May 15 – Sept 15, 2022) 
 
Improvements year-over-year in most metrics: 
 

 
 
 

 
Organic search: search engines such as Google 
Direct: directly visiting our website  
Referral: Arriving on our website via a link from another website, such as NAGC or a news article 
Social: Social Media such as Facebook and Twitter 

 
 

 



Board Book Page 32

Page 3 of 3 
 

        
SEO keyword improvements/wins: 
 

• “schools for gifted children” #2 -> #1 
• “gifted school” #4 -> #2 
• “high school gifted programs” #64 -> #65 
• “programs for gifted middle school students” #52 -> #23 
• “academy for gifted students” #2 -> #1 
• “gifted school” – bouncing between #1 and #2 

 
Next steps: 
 

• Build applications campaign plan for Google Ads and Facebook Ads 
• Increase blog content via new strategy that will incorporate a great deal of content from 

Davidson Institute website 
 

Ongoing Outreach  
 

Mensa Foundation Colloquium 
• July 5, 2022 – Sparks, Nev.  

 
Davidson Institute Eligibility Assessment Partnership 
Partnership with Northwestern University’s Center for Talent Development (CTD) to offer the 
opportunity to take an official practice SAT powered by Khan Academy; scores can be used to apply 
for the Davidson Academy. 

• Upcoming test administration dates: 
o October 1, 2022  
o November 5, 2022 

 
Davidson Academy eNewsletter – distributed every other month to 6,000 recipients 

• August 2022 
• June 2022 

 
eNews-Update – Often prominently features the Davidson Academy; distributed every other month 
to more than 15,000 recipients 

• July 2022 
• May 2022 

 
Social Media 

• Instagram - https://www.instagram.com/thedavidsonacademy/ 
• Facebook - https://www.facebook.com/TheDavidsonAcademy/ 
• Twitter - https://twitter.com/TheDavidsonAcad 
• YouTube - https://www.youtube.com/user/DavidsonAcademyNV  
• LinkedIn - https://www.linkedin.com/school/davidsonacademy/  

 
 

https://mailchi.mp/davidsongifted.org/june-2022-davidson-academy-enewsletter-5232929?
https://mailchi.mp/davidsongifted.org/june-2022-davidson-academy-enewsletter
https://mailchi.mp/davidsongifted.org/davidson-institute-enews-update-july-2022
https://mailchi.mp/davidsongifted.org/davidson-institute-enews-update-may-2022


Board Book Page 33



Board Book Page 34



Board Book Page 35



Board Book Page 36



Board Book Page 37



Board Book Page 38



Board Book Page 39



Board Book Page 40



Board Book Page 41



Board Book Page 42



Board Book Page 43



Board Book Page 44



Board Book Page 45



Board Book Page 46



Board Book Page 47



Board Book Page 48



Board Book Page 49



Board Book Page 50



Board Book Page 51



Board Book Page 52



Board Book Page 53



Board Book Page 54



Board Book Page 55



Board Book Page 56



Board Book Page 57



Board Book Page 58



Board Book Page 59



Board Book Page 60



Board Book Page 61



Board Book Page 62



Board Book Page 63



Board Book Page 64



Board Book Page 65



Board Book Page 66



Board Book Page 67



Board Book Page 68



Board Book Page 69



Board Book Page 70



Board Book Page 71


	Minutes
	MIT
	National Merit Scholar
	Audit
	Profile
	Media
	Independent Auditors Report
	Management Representation Letter
	AU 260 Letter

	Management Representation Letter: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 26: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 
	Page 58: 
	Page 59: 
	Page 60: 
	Page 61: 
	Page 62: 
	Page 63: 
	Page 64: 
	Page 65: 
	Page 66: 
	Page 67: 
	Page 68: 
	Page 69: 
	Page 70: 
	Page 71: 

	AU 260: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 26: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 
	Page 58: 
	Page 59: 
	Page 60: 
	Page 61: 
	Page 62: 
	Page 63: 
	Page 64: 
	Page 65: 
	Page 66: 
	Page 67: 
	Page 68: 
	Page 69: 
	Page 70: 
	Page 71: 

	Minutes: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 26: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 
	Page 58: 
	Page 59: 
	Page 60: 
	Page 61: 
	Page 62: 
	Page 63: 
	Page 64: 
	Page 65: 
	Page 66: 
	Page 67: 
	Page 68: 
	Page 69: 
	Page 70: 
	Page 71: 

	MIT: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 26: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 
	Page 58: 
	Page 59: 
	Page 60: 
	Page 61: 
	Page 62: 
	Page 63: 
	Page 64: 
	Page 65: 
	Page 66: 
	Page 67: 
	Page 68: 
	Page 69: 
	Page 70: 
	Page 71: 

	National Merit: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 26: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 
	Page 58: 
	Page 59: 
	Page 60: 
	Page 61: 
	Page 62: 
	Page 63: 
	Page 64: 
	Page 65: 
	Page 66: 
	Page 67: 
	Page 68: 
	Page 69: 
	Page 70: 
	Page 71: 

	Audit: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 26: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 
	Page 58: 
	Page 59: 
	Page 60: 
	Page 61: 
	Page 62: 
	Page 63: 
	Page 64: 
	Page 65: 
	Page 66: 
	Page 67: 
	Page 68: 
	Page 69: 
	Page 70: 
	Page 71: 

	Profile: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 26: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 
	Page 58: 
	Page 59: 
	Page 60: 
	Page 61: 
	Page 62: 
	Page 63: 
	Page 64: 
	Page 65: 
	Page 66: 
	Page 67: 
	Page 68: 
	Page 69: 
	Page 70: 
	Page 71: 

	Media: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 26: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 
	Page 58: 
	Page 59: 
	Page 60: 
	Page 61: 
	Page 62: 
	Page 63: 
	Page 64: 
	Page 65: 
	Page 66: 
	Page 67: 
	Page 68: 
	Page 69: 
	Page 70: 
	Page 71: 

	Independent Audit Report: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 26: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 
	Page 58: 
	Page 59: 
	Page 60: 
	Page 61: 
	Page 62: 
	Page 63: 
	Page 64: 
	Page 65: 
	Page 66: 
	Page 67: 
	Page 68: 
	Page 69: 
	Page 70: 
	Page 71: 

	Ind: 
	 Audit Report: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 26: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 
	Page 58: 
	Page 59: 
	Page 60: 
	Page 61: 
	Page 62: 
	Page 63: 
	Page 64: 
	Page 65: 
	Page 66: 
	Page 67: 
	Page 68: 
	Page 69: 
	Page 70: 
	Page 71: 


	AU 260 2: 
	Page 2: 
	Page 3: 
	Page 4: 
	Page 5: 
	Page 6: 
	Page 7: 
	Page 8: 
	Page 9: 
	Page 10: 
	Page 11: 
	Page 12: 
	Page 13: 
	Page 14: 
	Page 15: 
	Page 16: 
	Page 17: 
	Page 18: 
	Page 19: 
	Page 20: 
	Page 21: 
	Page 22: 
	Page 23: 
	Page 24: 
	Page 25: 
	Page 26: 
	Page 27: 
	Page 28: 
	Page 29: 
	Page 30: 
	Page 31: 
	Page 32: 
	Page 33: 
	Page 34: 
	Page 35: 
	Page 36: 
	Page 37: 
	Page 38: 
	Page 39: 
	Page 40: 
	Page 41: 
	Page 42: 
	Page 43: 
	Page 44: 
	Page 45: 
	Page 46: 
	Page 47: 
	Page 48: 
	Page 49: 
	Page 50: 
	Page 51: 
	Page 52: 
	Page 53: 
	Page 54: 
	Page 55: 
	Page 56: 
	Page 57: 
	Page 58: 
	Page 59: 
	Page 60: 
	Page 61: 
	Page 62: 
	Page 63: 
	Page 64: 
	Page 65: 
	Page 66: 
	Page 67: 
	Page 68: 
	Page 69: 
	Page 70: 
	Page 71: 



